Kirmer, Jennifer “Jen” #1317

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON ARCHIVES
ORAL HISTORY PROJECT

Interview #1317
KIRMER, JENNIFER “JEN”


KIRMER, JENNIFER “JEN” (1989 - )
Graduate Student, 2011-2013
At UW: 2011-2013

Interviewed: 	2013 
Interviewer: 	Troy Reeves
Index by: 	Troy Reeves
Length: 	40 minutes
Series: 		Madison’s LGBT Community, 1960s-Present

Abstract: In her April 2013 interview with Troy Reeves, Jennifer “Jen” Kirmer detailed her thoughts and memories as a graduate student on the UW-Madison campus. Kirmer spoke of the time period from 2000s and 2010s and on the following topics: Madison, WI; UW-Madison School for Library and Information Studies, LGBTQ Rights, Plan B (Madison nightclub), Kansas University. This interview was conducted for inclusion into the UW-Madison Oral History Program, specifically within the Madison’s LGBT Community, 1960s-Present oral history project.

Key Words: Madison, WI; UW-Madison School for Library and Information Studies, LGBTQ Rights, Plan B (Madison nightclub), UW-Madison Housing; UW-Madison Archives; Kansas University

Interview Session (April 8, 2013): Digital File

Time	Keywords

00:00:00	Start of Interview/Interviewer’s Introduction. 

00:00:30	Question: Why UW-Madison? Answer: Jennifer “Jen” Kirmer (JK) discussed how during her undergraduate at Kansas University, she became interested in archival work and pursuing an advanced degree in library science. She applied to four schools, getting accepted to all of them. UW-Madison, according to JK, not only initially accepted but also continued to provide her information to best prepare her for her time at UW-Madison. When asked about her interest in archives, she noted that her work as an undergraduate at KU’s Robert Dole Archives helped create it.  

00:04:00	Question: Initial thoughts about Madison & UW-Madison? Answer: She said that friends/colleagues that knew of Madison told her it was “Lawrence on steroids.” She explained why she agreed with that statement. She also talked about why she went to KU and how she came out while there, as well her involvement in marching and pep band during all four years at KU.   

00:08:00	Question: Places at KU/Lawrence she felt comfortable being out? Answer: JK noted that as she progressed at KU she felt more comfortable being out, particularly among her bandmates and while at the Wilde’s Chateau, the only bar near KU with an LGBTQ night. When asked about her favorite KU band memories, she listed playing at two college football bowl games, including one Orange Bowl. She also played at Allen Fieldhouse for students watching, on the scoreboard, the Kansas Men’s basketball team play for (and win) the national championship in 2008.

00:10:30	Question: Where did JK find her friends/socializing in Madison? Answer: JK started finding friends first within her cohorts in the graduate program at SLIS (School of Library and Information Studies). She also discussed meeting friends as she became interested in the city’s women’s rugby team. She did not play herself. When asked about being out in Madison, she said, basically, she came here out.  

00:13:45	Question: Archives job at UW-Madison or Madison? Answer: JK has worked at the Wisconsin Veterans Museum, but she focused her comments her on her jobs at University Housing and Archives. She explained how she earned both jobs and offered an overview of her work for each organization. When asked what those jobs taught her, she focused on how her time at Housing really helped her communication skills, because she needed to explain the importance of properly archival material to folks at Housing not trained in archival practices. 

00:18:10	Question: How classwork at SLIS helped her future professional work? Answer: She appreciated the on the job training, whether via a practicum or pointing her towards employment opportunities, offered through SLIS faculty. She also noted how faculty would allow her (and other archival track students) to build an archival project into their class. JK reiterated how her degree offered her less theoretical work and more hands-on training, which she appreciated.  When asked about student groups as SLIS, she furnished her thoughts on two groups she joined, including the student chapter of SAA (Society for American Archivists) and the student LGBTQ that she and others helped to revivify. She benefitted from the collaborative nature of these groups. 

00:22:15	Question: SLIS cohorts as friends? Answer: For the most part, her cohorts at SLIS did become her friends while here, except for part of her first year and summer when rugby club women also became her friends. When asked about places, especially safe places, in Madison, she said she never felt uncomfortable (or could not recall feeling uncomfortable) in any Madison locale. She felt safest, she noted, while in the SLIS halls or at Plan B, a Madison bar/night club. When asked for more about Plan B, JK offered some anecdotes about it.  

00:26:10	Question: Activism while on campus? Answer: She said that she felt her best activism was to live as an out lesbian, including to post or like pro-gay rights statements on social media, particularly her Facebook page. She also felt the SLIS LGBTQ group gave her opportunity to be active. 

00:27:40	Question: Dating in Lawrence and Madison? Answer: She dated a bit in Lawrence, primarily other band members. While in Madison she met and dated a SLIS cohort and some in the rugby club until she met her current partner. In Madison she never found it hard to find someone to ask out. This led JK and the interviewer to talk about gay marriage and LGBTQ rights for a couple of minutes.  

00:31:45	Question: Future employment based on state’s laws for (or against) LGBTQers? Answer: In a perfect world, she would work in a state with LGBTQ friendlier laws, but in the current job environment (as well as her current partner’s desire to live closer to her family), she has focused her search to the St. Louis area.  She noted that she and her partner had researched the St. Louis area for LGBTQ focused or friendly organizations to try to build a community of like-minded folks there as quickly as possible. 

00:33:45	Question: Final questions? Answer: When asked about the LGBT Campus Center, JK noted very little involvement in it, except occasionally enjoying a beer on the Terrace with the Q-Grads group. When asked about Madison as a place for LGBTQers, JK figured her time in Madison, as an out lesbian, was relatively stress free thanks to the members of the LGBTQ community that came here before her. When asked about her final thoughts, she noted that in Lawrence her community came primarily from her bandmates. In Madison, her community came from a larger swath of campus and community folks.  

00:37:24	End of Interview Session

End of Oral History #1317
